
APPROVED: 

MOTION BY:   SECONDED BY: 

AYES:  NAYS:  ABSTENTIONS:  ABSENT: 

DISTRIBUTION:  OFFICIAL MINUTES BOOK – TOWN CLERK – BLDG DEPT. 

 

 

 

ZBA MEETING MINUTES 

TOWN OF LLOYD ZONING BOARD 

Thursday, July 12, 2018 

 

Certification of Receipt 

 

By:  

________________________________ 

        Rosaria Peplow, Town Clerk 

 

Date:  

______________________________ 

CALL TO ORDER TIME:  7:00PM 1 
 2 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 3 
 4 
ATTENDANCE     Present:   John Litts, Chair; Paul Gargiulo; Russell Gilmore; William Brown; 5 

Alan Hartman; Michael Guerriero, Town Board Liaison; Anthony Giangrasso, 6 
Deputy Building Inspector; Rob Stout, Town Attorney; Dave Barton, Building 7 
Department Director; Laura Oddo-Kelly, Secretary to Planning and Zoning.  8 

     9 
           10 
ANNOUNCEMENTS:  GENERAL, NO SMOKING, LOCATION OF FIRE EXITS; ROOM CAPACITY IS 11 
49, PURSUANT TO NYS FIRE SAFETY REGULATIONS.  PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES. 12 
 13 
______________________________________________________________________________ 14 

 15 

New Business 16 

 17 

MCBS DG Highland LLC, 3584-3594 Route 9W, SBL# 88.17-6-25.110 & 88.17-6-16.110, in 18 

GMU zone. 19 

Dollar General / Multifamily 20 

*Applicant is seeking an area variance for side yard parking in the GM Zone 21 

Development project of 21.7 acres of land along Route 9W. The applicant desires to take three 22 

lots (SBL: 88.17-6-15.11, 16.11 and 25.11) Lot 3 will contain a proposed Dollar General retail 23 

store with parking on the side. 24 

 25 

John Joseph, developer and Caleb Carr, applicant’s engineer, were present to address particulars 26 

of the area variance requested. 27 

Barton gave an overview of the proposed project and the request for an area variance for the side 28 

yard parking. The proposed project has been in front of the Planning Board for over two years. 29 

He explained that the proposed Dollar General is not allowed to have side yard parking where it 30 

would be situated and they are unable to have parking in the front as the building is in very close 31 

proximity to Route 9W. The Dollar General building would be in an east-west direction and that 32 

it would be impossible to rotate it without demolishing the existing building that is there now. 33 

The primary entrance and parking would be on the south side. 34 

The ZBA viewed the maps and where vehicles would have ingress and egress. 35 

Barton said the applicant is looking for complete relief for the side yard parking. 36 

Litts reiterated that the applicant is looking for relief for all parking on the side yard. 37 

Stout said the zoning for the district requires all parking to be in the back as per the code. He said 38 

the Planning Board cannot waive it; the ZBA would be the Board that the applicant would have 39 

to seek relief from. 40 



 

Barton said there is no physical way to put a 70% frontage on that lot and still maintain the 41 

required safety apparatus lanes in and out of the site. He continued to say that the Planning Board 42 

is going to recommend some changes to the code be made to the Town Board. 43 

Stout said he spoke to the applicant’s attorney, Michael Moriello, who will be making a 44 

supplemental submittal to explain more fully the area variance, the requirements and exactly 45 

what they propose to do with the parking. 46 

A Motion was made by Alan Hartman, seconded by Bill Brown to set the public hearing for the 47 

August 9, 2018 meeting. All ayes. 48 

 49 

Jackson, Vicki, 11 Milton Avenue, SBL# 88.69-8-4, in CB Zone. 50 

Applicant is seeking a residential use variance to convert an existing ground floor commercial 51 

space of approximately 2200 square feet into two equal sized apartments. 52 

* Please refer to attached use table in code book. 53 

Applicant was present to give an overview of the intention of the proposed project. She supplied 54 

the Board with a drawing of the layout of the project. She explained that she would like to make 55 

two apartments out of the commercial space but still have the option of reverting it back to 56 

commercial space in the future if she so desires. 57 

Barton said if she makes the entire commercial space into residential, she would have to go in 58 

front of the Planning Board for a commercial conversion back if she would like to rent it to a 59 

commercial tenant. 60 

The ZBA would like to see a more accurate site plan at the next meeting. 61 

 62 

A Motion was made by Alan Hartman, seconded by Bill Brown to set the public hearing 63 

Contingent upon the applicant providing a more extensive site plan) for the August 9, 2018 64 

meeting. All ayes. 65 

 66 

New Public Hearings 67 

 68 

Watson, David I, 10 Bellevue Rd, SBL# 88.17-2-36.120, in R 2 Zone. 69 

Applicant is seeking an area variance relief of 13' 7" for the front yard to build a 240 sq ft 70 

accessory structure. 71 

The ZBA requested the applicant to provide them with pictures of the property which show 72 

the steep grade, where the building would be situated, and a topography map of the 73 

property. 74 

Spiciarich complaint letter received 07.09.18.  75 

 76 

The applicant was present to explain his intent of the area variance. 77 

Litts asked Watson if he brought pictures of the property and where the proposed project would 78 

be. 79 

Watson said he supplied them two weeks ago. 80 

There was a discussion on the steep slope of Watson’s property. 81 

Gargiulo asked how many feet was filled in on the slope by the applicant. 82 

Watson said he brought in one truckload. 83 

Gargiulo said it looks like much more than that and there is approximately three yards of fill at 84 

the tree line. Additionally, he said rocks and boulders that have fallen down the slope to the 85 

property on River Road. 86 



 

Watson did not agree. 87 

Gargiulo said the debris falls down to the bottom of the bluff. There are a row of trees down the 88 

slope that are collecting the fill that has been rolling off the hill of Watson’s property down to 89 

River Road. The slope is very steep, almost straight down approximately 100 feet.  90 

Watson asked where Gargiulo was obtaining his information from. 91 

Gargiulo said he has walked the property. 92 

Litts asked Watson if he had filled the area and compacted the fill. 93 

Watson replied yes. 94 

Litts asked if Watson has documentation or a compaction test that would show the fill was 95 

compacted. 96 

Watson said he did not have a compaction test but that said it was rolled and hard and it is a lawn 97 

presently. 98 

Litts explained that grass can grow on anything. 99 

Litts made full disclosure that he may have set up Crowder Construction with a fill site which 100 

was the same company that the applicant used for his fill. Litts did not broker the fill but knew of 101 

a contractor who was getting rid of fill and let Crowder Construction know. Both Litts and the 102 

applicant did or do not know if it was the same fill Watson used on his property. 103 

Stout said that action does not bear on Litts’s position on the Board with the proposed project as 104 

long as Litts can conduct himself in an unbiased fashion. 105 

Litts said he absolutely could. 106 

Litts asked if the applicant had the topography map requested by the Board at the last meeting. 107 

Gargiulo said there is a silt fence and palate holding back the fill on the slope. He said he went 108 

down to River Road, which is at the bottom of the slope, and saw a very small tree line that has 109 

been collecting some of the debris roll down of the fill. Gargiulo continued that Watson’s 110 

neighbor (who has submitted a letter to the ZBA) at the bottom of the slope has been taking 111 

rocks and boulders off of her lawn that have rolled down the slope. 112 

Litts asked Oddo-Kelly to read the letter to the Board from Watson’s neighbor for the record (see 113 

attached). 114 

Watson disagreed with and challenged Ann Marie Spiciarich’s letter blaming the falling debris 115 

on water runoff from the construction of a water pipe built by the Town. He said he is only 116 

seeking an 18” variance all the way around the proposed structure. 117 

Gargiulo said there is a formula in the code for slope, how far a building has to be away from the 118 

slope.  119 

There was a discussion of how and where the formula measurement would be taken and where 120 

the build angle would be. Further discussion included interpretation of the zoning code, the slope 121 

and the amount of fill that was put on the property. 122 

Gargiulo asked Watson how much fill he put on the property. 123 

Watson stated he put one truckload of fill on the property. He said he could not put the structure 124 

anywhere else on his property. 125 

Barton said Mr. Watson came to the ZBA a year ago for front yard relief and said the proposed 126 

project may require front yard relief as well. He said he believes Mr. Watson’s representation to 127 

the Board is somewhat faulty and inaccurate saying he only brought in one load of dirt onto the 128 

property. 129 

Watson said he thought he was asked how much fill was brought in recently for the proposed 130 

project. 131 

Gargiulo wanted to know where the original bluff of the hill is. 132 



 

The Board made a second request for the applicant to supply them with a survey and topography 133 

map of the property. 134 

Watson asked if he could still be denied if he came to the meeting with all the required 135 

documentation. 136 

Stout said there is a balancing test in the code that weighs all the criteria for all the variances. As 137 

part of Watson’s application, he is to address all the questions that are part of the balancing test 138 

and explain to the Board how they are met. The ZBA has requested the applicant to supply them 139 

with a visual graphic depiction of the proposed project but the applicant also needs substantiate 140 

why the project would require or qualify for relief from the ZBA. There is a section in the code 141 

about area variances and it tells the Board exactly what they need to consider when making a 142 

decision.  143 

Brown said he believes Watson stated last month that the front of the building would be in line 144 

with the wall. 145 

Watson said that was right. 146 

Brown stated he drove down to the property after the meeting and said that was not the case. 147 

Stout said there is a section in the NYS Town code which has a section on area variances, which 148 

also includes balancing test and read the questions relating to it. 149 

A Motion was made by Alan Hartman, seconded by Paul Gargiulo to extend the public hearing. 150 

All ayes. 151 

 152 

Rizzo, Thomas, 120 Lily Lake Rd, SBL# 87.2-1-5, in R1 Zone. 153 

Applicant is seeking an area variance to place a storage building in the front yard next to an 154 

existing carport. A building permit and CO were issued January 11, 1994 for a residential two 155 

vehicle carport. 156 

 157 

There was a discussion between the ZBA and the applicant about the measurements of where the 158 

proposed project will be according to the map. 159 

A Motion was made by Alan Hartman, seconded by Paul Gargiulo to open the public hearing. 160 

All ayes. 161 

There were no public comments. 162 

A Motion was made by Paul Gargiulo, seconded by Alan Hartman to close the public hearing. 163 

All ayes. 164 

The ZBA discussed the balancing test. 165 

A Motion to grant the area variance was made by Alan Hartman, seconded by Bill Brown. All 166 

ayes. 167 

 168 

Minutes to Approve:  169 

 170 

A Motion to approve the minutes of the June 14, 2018 Zoning Board Meeting was made by Paul   171 

Gargiulo, seconded by Alan Hartman. Four ayes; one abstention (Litts absent at last meeting). 172 



 

A Motion to adjourn was made by Russ Gilmore, seconded by Bill Brown, at 8:09PM. All 173 

ayes.174 

 175 
 176 



 

 177 


